SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 24, 2011
9:06 a.m

9:06:16 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stedman called the Senate Finance Commttee
nmeeting to order at 9:06 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice-Chair
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

M ke Bar nhi | |, Deput y Comm ssi oner, Depart ment of
Adm ni strati on; Gary Bader, Chief Investnent Oficer,
Depart ment of Revenue.

SUMVARY

APublic Enployee Retirement System (PERS) and Teachers
Retirement System (TRS) Updat e.

9:06: 23 AM

Co-Chair Stedman discussed the financial overview of the
PERS and TERS retirenent systens. He nentioned that the
Permanent Fund Dividend (PFD) would be discussed in a
future neeting.

M KE BARNHI LL, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTNMENT OF
ADM NI STRATI ON i ntroduced hi nsel f.



GARY BADER, CHI EF | NVESTMENT OFFI CER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
introduced the PowerPoint presentation "Public Enployee
Retirement System (PERS) and Teachers Retirement System
(TRS) (copy on file)."

M. Barnhill discussed Slide 2: "PERS/ TRS Update."
Basi c Facts

| nvest nent s
Recent Assunption Changes

<<~~~

SB 125 State Assi stance
Future
VI O her | ssues

M. Barnhill detailed Slide 4: "PERS/ TERS Basic Facts."

A Menber shi p
B. Or gani zati on
C Bal ance Sheet
D. Heal th Cost Trends
E. Fundi ng Ratio History
F. Enpl oyer Contri bution Rates
M. Barnhill discussed Slide 5: "Basic Facts-Menbership-
PERS. "

160 Menber Enpl oyers
3 Defined Benefit (DB) Tiers
25, 015 retirees
6, 566 term nat ed menber s entitled to future
benefits
27,565 actives (74.55%
59, 146 total nenbers
1 Defined Contribution (DC) Tier

0 retirees
304 t er m nat ed menber s entitled to future
benefits

9,412 actives (25.45%
9,716 total nenbers

9:12:18 AM

M. Barnhill discussed Slide 6: "Basic Facts-Menbership-
TRS. "
TRS

58 Menber Enpl oyers
2 Defined Benefit (DB) Tiers
10, 255 retirees
884 term nated menber s entitled to future
benefits
8,226 actives (78.4%
19, 365 total nenbers

Senat e Finance Committee 2 02/ 24/ 11 9:06 A M



1 Defined Contribution (DC) Tier
0 retirees
394 term nated menber s entitled to future
benefits
2,269 actives (21.6%
2,663 total nenbers

884 term nated menber s entitled to future
benefits
8,226 actives (78.4%
19, 365 total nenbers
1 Defined Contribution (DC) Tier
0 retirees
394 term nated menber s entitled to future
benefits
2,269 actives (21.6%
2,663 total nenbers

Co- Chair Stedman el aborated that TRS included teachers and
PERS was conprised of nunicipalities and state enpl oyees.

M. Barnhill added that the PERS included 160 nenber
enpl oyers, the largest of which is the state conprising 50
percent of the workforce and contributions. The remaining
159 enpl oyers are nunicipalities, school districts and ot her
smal | organi zati ons.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if every school district and
muni ci pality was included. M. Barnhill concurred.

Senator McQuire asked about the smaller organizations. She
requested a list of organizations. M. Barnhill responded
that a small nunber of organi zations are nenbers of PERS. He
offered to provide a conplete list.

9:15: 00 AM

Senat or Egan asked how many retirees were entitled to future
benefits. He wondered how many retirees were not entitled to
future benefits. M. Barnhill responded that PERS included
the category ternmed "inactive non-vested" including people
who cashed out contributions to the system He noted that
PERS had 14,600 people in the category. He stated that the
deadline for re-vesting has already expired.

Senator Egan asked if the 14,600 people were not eligible

for reentry to the system M. Barnhill concurred.
9:16:24 AM
M. Barnhill detailed Slide 7: "Basic Facts-Organization.”

He expl ained that the organization of the systemis divided
into three primary entities, the Departnment of Revenue
(DOR), the Al aska Retirement Managenment Board (ARMB) and the

Senat e Finance Committee 3 02/ 24/ 11 9:06 A M



Department of Adm nistration (DOA). Each entity has separate
functions with respect to the system The DOR through the
treasury division is the investnment manager of the trust
fund assets. The departnment hires investnment managers and
consultants. The ARMB is the fiduciary of the trust fund
assets. The ARMB sets the rates and the investnent policy,
whi ch the division of treasury carries out.

M. Barnhill continued that DOA handles the liability
i ssues. The departnment has staff to serve the ARMB. The
departnent also has a contract with the actuary, which
serves the needs of the Division of Retirenent and Benefits
(DRB) and ARMB.

9:17:48 AM

M. Barnhill detailed Slide 8: "Basic Facts-Bal ance Sheet."

PERS DB:
Assets (Mt. Value, 12/31/10) $10,901, 792, 145
Accrued Liabilities (Net Present Val ue 6/30/2010)
17,190, 284, 000 Unfunded Liability
$6, 288, 491, 855
Funding Ratio 63.42%

TRS DB:
Assets (Mt. Value, 12/31/10) $4, 603, 709, 667
Accrued Liabilities (Net Present Val ue 6/30/2010)
8,449, 650,000 Unfunded Liability
$3, 845, 940, 333
Funding Ratio 54.48%

M. Barnhill stated that the figures differ fromthe assets
that the actuary reports in its nost recent evaluation. He
mentioned that Buck Associates is the state's actuary. An
update is expected in April.

Co-Chair Stedman asked about the trust's litigation. M.
Barnhill replied that the topic is covered on Slide 31:
"Qther Issues-Mercer Settlenment.” He noted that the
Department of Law (DOL) on behalf of ARMB settled the
| awsuit against the systemis forner actuary Mercer for $500
mllion in June 2010. The system netted $402 million from
the settlement. The $402 nmillion was allocated between PERS
and TRS.

Co-Chair Stednan asked if the balance reflected in Slide 8
accounted for the contribution of the settlenent. M.
Barnhill responded yes, in addition to recent investnent
gains in the market.

9:20:31 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 4 02/ 24/ 11 9:06 A M



M. Barnhill continued that the unfunded liabilities listed
are estimations and Bach Consultants is working on its 2010
eval uation. He expected the figures to change sonewhat.

Co-Chair Hoffman asked how the funding ratios for defined
benefits under PERS conpare to other defined benefits in the
nation. M. Barnhill replied that Alaska's funding ratio is
low in conparison with other systenms in the nation. Co-Chair
Hof f man asked for a percentage in conparison wth other
defined benefit contributions. M. Barnhill replied that
sonme systens have approximately 100 percent funding rati os.
O her systens have |ess than 50 percent funding ratios. He
stated that various estimtes are used by actuaries to gauge
the health of a system He opined that a healthy system
showed ranges of 70 to 80 percent. He added that PERS is 63
percent and TRS is closer to 50 percent. The percentages are
i ndicative of a poorly funded system

Co- Chair Stedman asked about and the pension site wthout
the health insurance. M. Barnhill stated that Al aska is one
of four states that forward funds health care.

9:24: 01 AM

Co-Chair Stedman clarified that benefit prograns are not at
risk. He stated the goal to shrink the balance. M. Barnhil
appreciated the point and highlighted the constitutional
requirenent.

Co-Chair Stedman pointed out that Alaska includes the
prefunding of health insurance. M. Barnhill noted that
Al aska was one of four states that prefunded health care
The funding ratio for both pension benefits and health
benefits is equal.

Co-Chair Stednman pointed out the negative $10 billion
bal ance. He did not want the public to assune that the
benefit paynents were at risk. He stated that the goal is to
shrink the negative $10 billion inbal ance between assets and
l[iabilities. M. Barnhill agreed and added that everyone
working on the problem is conmtted to one goal ensuring
that all benefits are paid when due. He agreed that nany
chal l enges exist to bring the system back into a status of
full funding.

9:25:41 AM
M. Barnhill discussed Slide 9: "Basic Facts-Health Cost
Trends." He noted that the slide is derived from the

actuarial evaluation rel eased by Buck Consultants. The slide
depicts the last 30 years during which Al aska experienced 9
percent inflation in its health care costs. The nunber
denonstrates that Al aska has been unable to control health
cost growh over the long term Medical costs increased in

Senat e Finance Committee 5 02/ 24/ 11 9:06 A M



excess of the rate of inflation in Al aska. The actuary nust
recogni ze the trend adequately in the rates set for the
system The rates produced |ess than adequate contri butions
by enpl oyers, which was the basis of the Mercer |aw suit.
The DOR is reviewing the situation carefully wth
consideration of a variety of initiatives designed to change
the trend.

9:27:26 AM

M. Barnhill discussed Slides 10 and 11: "Basic Facts-
Funding Ratio History-PERS." He noted that the relative
funding of the systens in 1979 is simlar to present tines.
The state achieved 100 percent funding in the md 1980s.

M. Barnhill discussed Slide 12: "Contribution Rates." He
noted that rates are board adopted. The board adopted rates
in the early 2000s are low reflecting the oversight of the
actuaries. He recalled that the teacher's retirenent board
had a policy of flat rates in the 1990s, which elimnated
rate volatility for school districts. In 2002, the systens
received an actuarial audit and the oversights by Mercer
were first detected. The actuary rates spiked after the
audit, but the boards pursued a policy of increasing rates
by 5 percent per year. He noted that 2004 through 2007 show
an incline of contribution rates. He recalled SB 141 passi ng
in 2005, which sunset the Teacher's Retirenent board and the
Publ i ¢ Enpl oyees Retirenent board and replaced themw th the
current ARVMB. The ARMB set the rates at the actuarial rate
creating the spike seen in 2007 and 2008. He nentioned
consi derable concern about the inpact of 50 plus percent
contribution rates in school districts. The |egislature took
measures by appropriation and passed SB 125, which set, by
statute the enployee contribution rate for TRS at 12.5
percent and for PERS at 22 percent.

Co-Chair Stedrman clarified percent of payroll. M. Barnhill
concurred. He described the breakdown of the rates

illustrated.
9:31:36 AM
M. Barnhill continued that the initial spike trended down

t hrough 2009 and 2010, which reflected investnent gains and
actuarial gains. The great recession in 2008 and 2009 caused
rates to spike again. The actuarial rates are projected at
50 percent for TRS and 30 percent for PERS. He noted that SB
125 allows the state to cover the difference and the funding
is appropriated in the operating budget.

Co-Chair Stedman added that the state could fund 14 percent
of payroll w thout the unfunded liability.

Senat e Finance Committee 6 02/ 24/ 11 9:06 A M



M. Barnhill added that rates are high and expected to rise.
Muni ci pal enployers will continue to pay 22 percent of their

total payroll. School districts will pay only 12.5 percent
of the total payroll. The state picks up the renai nder under
SB 125.

9:33:45 AM

M. Bader discussed Slide 14: "Investnents- ARMB Assets Under
Managenent." He stated that DOR nanages $18 billion of non-
retirement funds and another $19 billion of funds that are
part of the retirement system now subject to the fiduciary
oversight of the ARMB. He nentioned 14 different funds
associated with the defined benefit retirenment account. He
quoted that the PERS trust was at $6 billion, the PERS
health trust at $4.8 billion, the TRS retirenent trust at $3
billion and the TRS health trust at $1.5 billion. The ARMB
is responsible for oversight of the supplenental annuity
plan which is in deferred conp and totals approximtely $3
billion. He explained that the retirenent accounts nust be
managed separately according to the advice of tax council.

M. Bader discussed Slide 15: "lnvestnent-Asset Allocation.”
He nentioned that the asset allocation is currently active
for all defined benefit plans except the mlitary retirenent
plan. The target allocation has 29 percent of assets
invested in donestic wequities, 23 percent in global
equities, 7 percent in private equity, 16 percent in real
assets, 5 percent in absolute return, 19 percent in fixed
incone, and 1 percent in cash. The board adopts bands around
which staff is permtted to allow the investment mx to
change.

M. Bader discussed Slide 16: "Investnents- US Stock Market
Hi storical Returns.” He commented on the pictorial view of
the history of equity markets. The exanple shows that 29
percent of the yearly returns are negative.

9:37:50 AM

M. Bader discussed Slide 17: "lnvestnents-Fiscal Year
Returns.” He explained that returns of the PERS and TRS are
simlar to those of the permanent fund. He added that an
ei ghteen year period shows that the PERS and TRS were very
close to the returns of the permanent fund. Co-Chair Stedman
asked why the five and eighteen year periods were sel ected
for the illustration. M. Bader responded that the ten year
conpari son was not favorable.

Co- Chair Stedman requested the neasurenent periods for one,
three, five, and ten year returns.

9: 39: 33 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 7 02/ 24/ 11 9:06 A M



Senator Egan asked about returns before 1993. M. Bader
responded that Callan Associates had the requested figures.
He offered to provide the returns to the commttee.

M. Barnhill added that eighteen years was reflective of the
two board's fiduciary responsibility over the assets. He
stated that a 30 year annualized return is 8.7 percent,
which is much higher due to extraordinary returns in the
early 1980s. M. Bader added that the five year return
corresponds to the length of period that the ARMB has had
fiduciary responsibility.

Co-Chair Stedman added that some historic data is available
in his office. He noted that the history occurs in a wde
range of annual books addressing stocks, bonds, and other
asset cl asses.

9:41:51 AM
M . Bader nentioned Slide 18: "I nvest ment s- Cunrul ati ve
Returns.” He noted that the lines shown represent the

returns provided. The red line shows the cunulative tota
return of the fund over the past 18 or 19 years. The bl ue
line represents how the fund would perform at its target
asset allocation using index returns. The curvilinear |ine
represents that which the fund would have earned
cumul atively had it earned the 8.25 percent, or the assuned
rate of return.

Senat or McGQuire asked about health costs and the
consideration of their percentage of growh. M. Bader
responded that the health costs manifest thenselves in the
calculated contribution rate. The investnents intended to
return a certain anount.

Senator McCuire opined that with an unachi eved target of 8.5
percent, the Ilegislature nust have future conversations
about the actual costs associated with paying benefits to
beneficiaries including percentages earned.

9:44: 49 AM

M. Barnhill agreed.

Co-Chair Stednman agreed that a simlar chart led to finance
menber confusion in the past when the commttee was told
that no problem existed. The conmttee' s request was to take
the targeted 8.25 percent and "shoot it forward." The data
is conceptually difficult for some nenbers. He requested
that the asset value for June 30 with a target of 8.25, with
a new growth line for each year.

9:47: 23 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 8 02/ 24/ 11 9:06 A M



Senator McQuire added that the health care costs should be
located in the chart as well. Co-Chair Stednman noted that
the health care costs fall back to an increasing
contribution rate.

Co-Chair Stedman stated that a higher targeted rate would be
unattainable. He noted the need for prudence in an
attainable target. The ARMB is required by statute to match
assets and liabilities.

M. Barnhill nentioned a contenporary conversation regardi ng
the issue of appropriately matching assets with liabilities.
He nentioned that the investnent return assunption of
systens |ike PERS and TRS should be reduced to a riskless
rate of return like 5 percent, which is sonething that
Al aska has not enbraced. The choice would double the
unfunded liability for Al aska, which would increase enpl oyer
contribution rates. The historic rates of return are closer
to the rate of return. Alaska, the ARMB, and nobst pension
boards around the country are not enbracing the notion of a
ri skl ess rate of return.

Co-Chair Stedman commented that data fromthe |ast 15 years
with a targeted rate of return would be hel pful.

M. Barnhill offered to portray the nunbers in any way
needed by the conmitt ee.

9:51:52 AM

M. Bader described Slide 20: "Recent Assunption Changes."

= AS 37.10.220(a)(9) requires a review of actuarial
assunptions every four years

= Buck Consultants perforned the experience study

= Gabriel Roeder Smth & Co. reviewed and certified
t he Buck experience study

= Based on the Buck and GRS reports, the ARM Board
nodi fied sonme of its actuarial assunptions

M. Bader discussed Slide 21: "Recent Assunption Changes-
| nvest nent Returns.”

» |nvestnment Return Assunption reduced from 8.25% to
8. 00%

— 4.88%real return assunption
— 3.12% inflation assunption

Senator Thomas referred to Slide 17. He asked why the
proposed investnent return assunption is reduced by one
gquarter of a percent. M. Bader responded that the board
| onered the percentage to 8 percent to remain conpetitive
wi th ot her funds.

Senat e Finance Committee 9 02/ 24/ 11 9:06 A M



Senator Thonmas thought that the state's experience and the
performance of the permanent fund mght affect the
i nvestnment return assunption.

9:55:21 AM

M. Barnhill responded that the country saw a gradual
reduction from investnment returns in the 8.5 percent range
down to 8 percent and |lower. Pension systens are resisting
the notion of percentages |lower than 7.5.

Co-Chair Stedman stated that the finance committee has
expressed concern that 8.25 is a high target, which
artificially suppresses the liability. He wished to view a
better estimate of the liability and asset spread. He asked
why the asset allocation is so simlar to that of the
permanent fund when the objectives appear to be different.
He encouraged additional opinions. He discussed the state's
liquidity position. He expected the finance commttee to
request additional consultants to provide varying opinions.

9:59:14 AM

Co- Chair Stedman appreciated the |lower target. M. Barnhill
replied that the lower rate wll have a future inpact.
Whenever the investnent return assunption is |owered, sone
impact will exist for the unfunded liability. He predicted a
nodest increase in the unfunded liability and the total
enpl oyer contribution rate. He added that the permanent fund
changed its asset allocation and adopted different asset
categories. The simlarity in returns for the funds is a
result of exposure to equities.

10: 01: 14 AM

M. Bader discussed Slide 22: "Recent Assunption Changes-
Contri bution Rate Inpact."

PERS TRS
FY 2012 Enpl oyer Contribution Rate 30.76% 42.61%
Change i n Denographics (net) 1.25% 5.55%
(post termnation nortality)
Change in Earnings Assunption 1.53% 1.77%

Total Change in Enployer Contribution 2.78% 7.32%

FY2012 Enpl oyer Contribution Rate -
Revi sed 33.54% 49.93%

10: 04: 01 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 10 02/ 24/ 11 9:06 A M



Co- Chair Stednman asked about excess contributions nade by
t he state.

M. Barnhill discussed Slides 23 and 24: "SB 125 State
Assi stance.” The slides depict the paynents made by the
state historically and the projected anmounts. He nentioned
2009; the first year that SB 125 took affect when the state
paid $400 million. He nentioned that prior to the enactnent
of SB 125, the state nmade a simlar paynent to buy down the
rate for the year. He stated that the governor has proposed
amounts of approximately $470 mllion in the operating
budget for the FY 12 paynent anmount. The proposed state
assisted amount under SB 125 will clinb steeply and wll
crest over $1 billion in ten years on its way to $1.4
billion in 2029. He expl ained the sharp drop in 2029 because
the initial unfunded liability, which was the product of the
actuarial audit in 2002 equaling $4.4 billion, will be fully
anortized under a 25 year anortization. Once fully
anortized, the state assistance will drop considerably under
SB 125.

Senator McCuire asked to see pre SB 125 and post SB 125 data
regarding state contribution to PERS and TRS.
Co-Chair Stedman offered to provide the information to

Senator M CGuire.
10: 09: 31 AM

M. Barnhill stated that the legislature contributes
considerable funding to the system He noted further
contributions fromthe enpl oyers.

Co-Chair Stedman nentioned the judiciary retirement plan.
M. Barnhill added that the contribution to the judicia
retirement system was considerably smaller with a funding
hol e of $10 or $20 million. The proposition of fully funding
the judicial retirenent system is an easy prospect in
conparison to that of PERS and TRS

10: 11: 22 AM

M. Barnhill discussed Slide 26: "PERS/ TRS Future."

= ARM Board held work session in Septenber 2010 at the
request of | egislative finance.
— Discussed how to  Dbest addr ess unf unded
[iability
— Model ed different approaches and scenari os
— Di scussion and nodeling is ongoi ng

Senat e Finance Committee 11 02/ 24/ 11 9:06 A M



M. Barnhill discussed Slide 27: "PERS TERS Future." He
informed that wunfunded liability is referred to as soft
liability and equals roughly $10 billion. The legislature
and ARMB determ ne the paynent of the liability. The policy
concern is whether to pay nore now or later. He stressed
that the actual benefit paynments were not a soft liability.
The paynments will exist until 2080 or 2090 when the |ast
defined benefit nenber passes away. A long term view of the
benefit paynents was projected by Buck Consultants and
depicted on the slide. The projected benefit paynents wll
crest over $3 billion per year for a 20 year period
begi nning in 2028.

M. Barnhill detailed Slide 28: "Future."

Long term observati ons:

= Sharply declining petrol eum revenues post-2030

= Oher obligations (schools and Medicaid) wll
conmpound fiscal situation — paying now versus paying
nore later is in sharp tension

= Paying nore now and reducing state savings accounts
could reduce budgeting flexibility post-2030 at a
time when state savings account may be necessary to
“keep the lights on”

= Paying | ess now increases expenses in the long term

= More critical thinking and di scussion about a gl obal
approach to structuring state finances and budgeting
including a long term plan for PERS/TRS funding is

needed
10: 16: 26 AM
M. Barnhill discussed Slide 30: "PERS/TRS Oher |ssues-

Term nation Studies.”" He infornmed that the PERS statute
states that when an enployer either term nates conpletely
from PERS, or term nates a classification of enployees from
PERS, a termnation study is required. The additional cost
of the study will be billed to the enployer. The actuaries
report that when a class of enployees is term nated, changes
in retirement behavior occur. Wen an enployee retires
earlier than anticipated, an unfunded liability is
established in the system The termnation study ensures
that the systemremains whole as a result of changes caused
by a particular enployer. Co-Chair Stedman added that the
ltability would fall to the state. He did not want the
liability to shift. M. Barnhill agreed.

M. Barnhill added that he requested that Buck Associ ates
sunmari ze the termnation studies that occurred in 2010. The
studi es are depicted on Slide 30. Each study cost a total of
$25 hundred and produced a onetime term nation ranging from
$10 thousand to $21 thousand. The statute allows the
division of Retirenent and Benefits to have a paynent plan

Senat e Finance Committee 12 02/ 24/ 11 9:06 A M



with the nunicipality allowng the cost to be spread over
time to reduce the inpact on finances. He opined that the
statute was fair. One issue raised regarded the production
of unfair double counting. He nentioned current work wth
the Departnent of Law (DOL) with the objective of the
elimnation of unfair double counting.

Co-Chair Stedman nentioned Fairbanks and a simlar issue
The risk is that nultiple nunicipalities will go broke. He
stressed that shifting liability presents a |large issue. He
wi shed to see the contribution rate drop to 14 percent.

10: 21:28 AM

M. Barnhill nentioned Slide 32: "PERS/TRS O her |ssues-
PERS Payroll." The information was requested by the
Legi sl ati ve Finance division. The defined benefit portion of
the declining payrolls is illustrated in the slide.

M. Barnhill noted Slides 34 and 35: "PERS/TRS." The slides
illustrate the enployee contribution rates in PERS and TRS
including the adoptive rate, the board rate, and the SB 125
rate.

Co-Chair Stedman offered to work with the departnent on the
regul atory issue of the termnation study. He expl ained that
some nunicipalities feel that they are not treated fairly.
M. Barnhill wunderstood and wel conmed the collaboration. He
offered to provide information from the DOL regarding the
reported doubl e counti ng.

Co-Chair Stedman expected to have additional information
from Buck Associates regarding the paynent structure. He
wi shed to avoid the paynent of $1.4 billion per year.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

10: 25: 41 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:26 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 13 02/ 24/ 11 9:06 A M



